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Questions and answers 
 

Supply of Equipment for the Croatian Agency for Protection of Personal Data - relaunch 

 

1. Publication reference 

EuropeAid/127331/D/SUP/HR – relaunch 

     2. Procedure 

Open 

3. Programme 

IPA 

4. Financing 

National Programme for Croatia under the IPA – Transition Assistance and Institution Building component 

for 2007 
 

5. Contracting authority 

     Central Finance and Contracting Agency 

 

 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

Date: 20 May 2010 

 

1. We have downloaded the annexes from the 

following web page:          

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/procedures/in

dex_en.htm  

However, most of the annexes and templates are 

referred to last year (2009). Where could we find 

the annexes for the Tender 2010? 

Date: 21 May 2010 

 

The offers must be submitted using the templates 

published within the Tender Dossier for this particular 

tender. Tender dossier is available at:  

http://www.safu.hr/en/tenders/view/176/supply-of-

equipment-for-the-croatian-agency-for-protection-of-

personal-data - Tender Dossier - Relaunch.zip 

 

2. In relation to the guarantee, we would like to 

make sure that tenderers must provide a tender 

guarantee of 11.000 EUR (because in some 

documents, we have noticed that the total amount 

is 10.950 EUR). 

As specified in Procurement Notice, Point 11 and 

Instructions to tenderers, Points 11 and 22, tenderers 

must provide a tender guarantee of 11.000 EUR when 

submitting their tender.  

3. We have identified the deadline for submission 

of tenders and the tender opening session (both in 

the 15
th
 June 2010). However, could you inform 

us about the whole timetable (notification of 

award, signature of contract, etc)? 

All dates related to this tender procedure are specified in 

the Instructions to Tenderers, Point 2 Timetable. Please 

note that some of the dates are only provisional.  

4. In addition, we would like to know if the tender 

opening session is going to be in English or in 

Croatian. 

All correspondence including tender opening session 

must be in the language of the procedure which is 

English.  

5. In our case, we are presenting an individual 

tender. Consequently, when implementing the 

“Tender form for a supply contract”, should we 

indicate only our relevant specialisms related to 

this contract? On other words, do we have to fill 

in only the column related with the leader? 

Tenderer (either sole tenderer or consortium) is 

expected to indicate own specialism relevant for the 

contract. Only your relevant specialisms need to be 

provided. 

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/procedures/index_en.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/procedures/index_en.htm
http://www.safu.hr/en/tenders/view/176/supply-of-equipment-for-the-croatian-agency-for-protection-of-personal-data
http://www.safu.hr/en/tenders/view/176/supply-of-equipment-for-the-croatian-agency-for-protection-of-personal-data
http://www.safu.hr/en/tenders/view/176/supply-of-equipment-for-the-croatian-agency-for-protection-of-personal-data
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6. In which language must be the tender supply the 

computer software? Only in English? Or should 

the software be also available in Croatian? 

Croatian version of the software is not required.  

7. Finally, it is not clear for us if the computer 

keyboards must be standards or if we should 

supply Croatian Keyboards. 

Both solutions would be considered acceptable since it 

is not otherwise specified in the Technical 

Specifications. 

Date: 24 May 2010 

 

1. We found that for the following items: 

No 8 Backup server (Quantity 1) 

No 9 Virtualization servers (Quantity 1) 

No 13 Cluster servers – High Availbility solution 

(Quantity 1) 

 

Such requirements as “Software for server 

surveillance”, “Additional software”, 

“Performance management software”, 

“Vulnerability and Patch Management 

Software”, “Software for fast server deployment” 

can be satisfied by means of Item #12 

“Management Suite”. 

 

In this case – is it necessary to additionally 

include Software for server surveillance, 

Additional software, Performance management 

software, Vulnerability and Patch Management 

software, Software for fast server deployment in 

Items No 8, 9 and 13, or will it be sufficient that 

these requirements are fully covered by the 

Management Suite as offered in item 12? 

Answer: 27 May 2010 

 

It is necessary to fulfil all the requirements from 

Technical Specification for specific Items, meaning that 

the mentioned software must be supplied within Items 

No. 8, 9 and 13.  

2. We found that in Item No. 9 requirement 

“Software for monitoring server/storage devices 

integrated in unified software for monitoring” 

can be satisfied by the means of Item No 12? 

      In this case, where should the client licences be 

included – into Item No 9 or in Item No 12? 

It is necessary to fulfil all the requirements from 

Technical Specification for specific Item (No. 9).  Client 

licences for “Software for monitoring server/storage 

devices integrated in unified software for monitoring” 

are specified and must be offered in Item No. 9. 

3. For item #10: 

1) please specify: 

- required quantity of SSL-users 

- required quantity of sessions per second 

- productivity of VPN measured in 

Mbytes/sec 

 

2) What is implied under: 

- Integration of VPN with the Microsoft 

Firewall service (on desktops) 

- Real-time monitoring and filtering of 

firewall sessions 

- Connection verifiers 

1) In point of view of Technical Specification for Item 

No 10, quantity of SSL-users, quantity of sessions per 

second and productivity of VPN measured in 

Mbytes/sec are not relevant. In addition, it must be 

taken into account that the item No 10 will be connected 

with Item No 2. 

 

2) - Integration of VPN with Microsoft Firewall (on 

desktops) implies that VPN software is integrated with 

Microsoft Firewall (on desktops). In other words it 

means that VPN software is “aware” of Microsoft 

Firewall and that they “can communicate”.  

- Real time monitoring and filtering of firewall sessions 

implies that it is possible to monitor firewall sessions in 

real time or ability to see TCP/IP traffic in real time. 

Filtering means that there is a possibility to narrow the 

choice of monitoring firewall sessions by applying 

certain filter (e.g. IP address …) 

- Connection verifiers represent certain test points that 
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regularly check the connectivity of system to certain 

location by certain mean. (e.g. http connectivity to 

www.google.com) 

4. For item #11: 

1) How many users total will use the Email 

system? 

2) There is required “High Availability 

implementation – 2 email servers in active – 

active mode”. To satisfy this requirement we 

can propose: 

� Email servers as a hardware 

� Email software licenses 

� System software licenses 

Please specify – what shall be propose? 

3) Is it correct that requirement “Antivirus: 

Attachment Filtering” should be satisfied by 

means of “Email server protection 

specification” and “Hosted Email security 

protection specification” of Item #12? If so, is 

it correct that there is no need to include 

specialized software in Item #11 to satisfy 

mentioned above requirement? 

 

1) Number of users specified under Item #11 in 

Technical Specification is 30.  

2) It is up to the Contractor to choose the appropriate 

solution in the course of implementation. However, the 

tenderer, when submitting the offer, must fulfil all the 

requirements from Technical Specification for specific 

Item.  

 

 

 

3) The offered E-mail system must have the 

functionality of “Antivirus: Attachment Filtering” which 

can be satisfied by means of “Email server protection 

specification” and “Hosted Email security protection 

specification” of Item 12. Hence, it is correct that there 

is no need to include specialized software in Item 11. 

5. For Item #12 in part “Suites: Management, 

Antivirus, Mail Archiving and Software Asset 

Management (Quantity 1)” we can propose: 

� Application Software licenses 

� Works 

� System software licenses 

� Hardware servers 

Please specify what we should propose. 

It is up to the Contractor to choose the appropriate 

solution in the course of implementation. However, the 

tenderer, when submitting the offer, must fulfil all the 

requirements from Technical Specification for specific 

Item. 

6. For Item #13: 

Do we understand correctly that requirement 

“Other functionality – Active Directory services 

implemented – highly available” implies 

Implementation of Active Directory on these 

cluster servers? 

Yes. 

7. For Item #15 in part “Documents and records 

management system and Company intranet 

(Quantity 1)”: 

Do we understand correctly that requirement 

“Documents and records management system 

and Company intranet (Quantity 1)“ implies the 

supply not only Application software, but: 

- Hardware (servers, workstations, network 

equipment) that we should propose 

- System and Standard software (server and 

client operational systems, monitoring and 

management software, office software) 

that we should propose 

“Documents and records management system and 

Company intranet (Quantity 1)“ implies to supply only 

Application software specified in Technical 

Specification with licences for 30 users. 

 

 

8. 1) Is it possible to obtain information about 

Customer’s organizational structure and business 

process in this study of bidding? 

 

2) Will the customer assign consultants for 

assistance in receiving detailed requirement to 

1) All necessary information regarding Customer's 

organizational structure and business process will be 

available in the implementation phase. 

 

2) No. 

 

http://www.google.com/
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the system in the study of Implementation? 

 

3) Are there some requirements to the 

methodology of project management, 

cooperation with the customer, stages of project 

implementation? 

 

4) Item #15, part “FUNCTIONAL 

COMPONENT – Digital signature”. Is it 

connection supposed in PKI infrastructure with 

external Certificate Authority? 

 

5) On the stage of Implementation – who does 

execute initial data input and tuning of business-

processes in system – supplier or customer?  

 

 

3) No. 

 

 

 

 

4) The connection with external Certificate Authority is 

not requested. 

 

 

 

5) The supplier must provide only those services which 

are listed in the technical specification for particular 

Item. Execution of initial data input will be done by the 

Customer. 

9. Item #9, part “Blade servers specification” 

We found that complex of requirements points to 

Blade server which is already out of Production 

(discontinued). 

 

Is it acceptable to propose more modern server 

which is not discontinued, with such 

Specifications: 

 

HDD controller – HP Smart Array P410i 

Controller, 2 hard disc connections 

 

HDD hot-plug bays total – 2 hot-plug drive bays 

to support SAS/SATA drives 

 

RAID controller – HP Smart Array P410i 

Controller, 2 hard disc connections SAS/SATA 

 

Expansion slots – 2 x I/O expansion mezzanine 

slots (x8 PCI Express) 

 

 

 

 

 

Minimum requirements as stated in the Technical 

Specification for Blade server must be fulfilled. 

10. In the documentation there is a note about 

administrators training. Should the business users 

training be included in the scope of work? 

It is necessary to fulfil minimum requirements from 

Technical Specification, meaning that in Item No 15 and 

17 only administrators training are required. 

11. For Item #15, #17: 

This question is about System user interface (UI) 

appearance: 

Is there any requirements to the UI design: 

1) the system will use default design 

2) UI design development and approval should 

be in the scope of work 

 

 

 

User interface (UI) design is not specified. 

12. Item #16 – Functional component – Records 

management system (RMS)  

 - Should we support DoD 5115.2 Chapter 4 

(Classified Records Management)? 

  

Item #16 – Administration of Documents and 

records management system and company 

intranet system users  

- Please provide us with more information about 

Functional component – Records management system 

(RMS) is listed under Item No 15 in the Technical 

Specification. 

Records management system must be DoD 5015.2 

Standard certified. 

Administration of Documents and records management 

system and company intranet system users is listed 

under Item No 15 in the Technical Specification. 

The ISO 17799 is taken as an example and the security 
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this requirement. ISO17799 is too wide standard. 

It includes Organization Security, Personal 

Security, etc – what parts of this standard we 

should support? 

 

Related links: 

http://www.17799central.com/iso17799.htm 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/ISO/IEC_27002  

 

Item #15 – User requirements  

- Please provide us with more information about 

responsibility of each role 

 

 

 

 

Item #15 – Functional component – Joint portal:  

- What means by IT support: email, forum or live 

support? 

- Is IT support functionality in the scope of this 

project? 

 

Item #15 – Functional component – Joint 

calendar:  

- Please provide us with more information about 

how should View of the calendar follow the 

hierarchy of the “Agency”. 

 

Item #15 – Functional component – Document 

Management System (DMS): “Quoted ”DMS 

must allow it and supply the option of merging 

these two documents versions into one detecting 

the possible collisions”  

- What document types must be supported? - For 

which document types must be merging 

supported? 

 

Item #15 – Functional component – Workflow:  

- Please provide the typical use-cases for 

integration 

- What kind of system and actions should our 

system be able to do to provide integration 

 

 

 

Item #15 – Functional component – Business 

Rules engine for hierarchical approval and 

approval delegation: 

Please describe the possible workflows of 

improvement 

- Is it possible to have multiple level of 

improvement workflow, with mixed workflow 

points? For example: 1
st
 person should approve, 

than 2
nd
 person, than multiple approval, then 

serial, etc. 

 

standard should be supported only in relation to the 

Document and records management system and 

company intranet system. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regarding User requirements, according to Technical 

Specification only possibility to define five different 

categories of users is requested. All further 

particularities in connection with the responsibility of 

each role will be defined in the implementation phase 

according to the offered solution. 

 

Regarding Functional component – IT support means 

notification by email. 

 

IT support functionality is not in the scope of this 

project. 

 

Regarding Functional component –All particularities in 

connection with Customer's organization and hierarchy 

will be provided in the implementation phase according 

to the offered solution. Generally, the viewing of the 

calendar should follow the structure of the departments 

inserted in the joint calendar. 

Regarding Functional component – Document 

Management System (DMS) it is up to company that 

will be contracted to decide what document types (this 

refers to all types of office documents) will be supported 

(bearing in mind that all requirements from Technical 

Specification for Item 15 must be met) and for those 

types merging must be supported. 

 

 

 

Regarding Functional component – Workflow: 

Integration is not envisaged under this project but only 

the possibility of integration. It is up to the company 

that will be contracted how it will implement particular 

solution. Sending notification about request to external 

system would be considered as acceptable. 

 

Regarding Functional component - Business Rules 

engine for hierarchical approval and approval delegation 

- Yes, it is possible to have multiple level of 

improvement, with mixed (serial and parallel approvals) 

workflow.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.17799central.com/iso17799.htm
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/ISO/IEC_27002
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Item #15 – Functional component – Business 

Rules engine for hierarchical approval and 

approval delegation (Integration with MS 

Exchange…) 

- Please provide us with more information about 

ERP and HR systems used (or will be used) in 

Company and what type of integration is needed 

with external systems? 

Is it about sending notification about approval 

request to external system? (escalate) 

 

Item #15 – Functional component – Application 

for automation of receiving, processing and 

archiving request forms from Agency customers: 

- what kind of integrations is needed? 

- what integration should include? 

- with what ERP, HR systems integration is 

needed? 

 

     Item #17 

-Do we need integration of Documents and 

Records Management System with Internet 

portal? Or are they two systems which are 

independent and unrelated to each other? If 

integration between them is needed – please give 

us information about such integration 

- Do we need to have Active-Active 

configuration for Internet Portal? 

- What is average and peak loading of the 

Internet portal? 

- No ERP and HR systems are used in Agency and it is 

up to company that will be contracted how it will 

implement particular solution. Sending notification 

about approval request to external system would be 

considered as acceptable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regarding Functional component - Application for 

automation of receiving, processing and archiving 

request forms from Agency customers 

- It is necessary to cover general functionality of each 

system (e.g. for Active Directory – user rights).  

 - It is up to company that will be contracted how it will 

implement particular solution. 

- Integration with leading vendors of such systems.  

 

Regarding Item #17 

- Integration of Documents and Records Management 

System with Internet portal is not requested. 

- Active-Active configuration for Internet Portal is not 

requested. 

- Average and peak loading of the Internet portal is not 

requested. 

13. Item #1, User Switch with PoE 48 port 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification there is request 

“Installation, configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

14. Item #1, User Switch with PoE 48 port 

What kind of fibber or copper uplink standard should 

be supported by the switch? 

This requirement is not specified in the technical 

specification.  

15. Item #2, Security Appliance 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Security appliance“ it is said that it should support up 

to 5 security contexts. 

Does the offered security appliance have to include 

any actual security context licences? 

The offered security appliance does not have to include 

any actual security context licences. 

16. Item #2, Security Appliance 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification there is request 

“Installation, configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

17. Item #3, All in One Printer 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 
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Installation specification there is request 

“Installation, configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

18. Item #6, Storage Area Network 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Location & Rack specification stands that mounting 

in standard rack with internal illumination (800 x 900 

x 2000 mm) (w x d x h), IT rack with all necessary 

cabling included is requested. 

Does this request mean that appropriate rack should 

be offered within this item, or there is already 

prepared rack for mounting of equipment on-site? 

Appropriate rack for given Item should be provided. 

19. Item #6, Storage Area Network 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Dynamic Capacity specification stands that the 

offered solution must support dynamic capacity 

management (on-line increasing and decreasing of 

LUNs). 

Does this request mean that this feature must be 

supported / available in the offered solution only, or 

it must be licensed within solution? 

Additional explanation: several SAN vendors do 

license this feature and it is very important to clarify 

is this request just possibility of SAN solution that 

should be licensed or exact request for delivery / 

license of such feature. 

This feature must be supported / available in the offered 

solution, hence there is no need for it to be licensed. 

20. Item #6, Storage Area Network 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification there is request 

“Installation/ configuration / testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

21. Item #7, Tape Library 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification there is request 

“Installation/ configuration / testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

22. Item #8, Backup Server 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Backup Software Installed specification, there is 

request “Support for non-Microsoft Operating 

Systems and Applications”. 

What exact non-Microsoft Operating Systems and 

Applications must be supported? 

Does “support” means possibility to support i.e. to 

be licensed with additional licenses, or these licenses 

should be offered within solution? 

If specific licenses for non-Microsoft Operating 

systems and Applications should be offered, what is 

exact list of such Operating Systems and 

“Support for non-Microsoft Operating Systems and 

Applications” means only a possibility to support non-

Microsoft Operating Systems. Exact kind of non-

Microsoft Operating Systems and Applications is not 

specified. No additional licenses should be offered. 
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Applications? 

23. Item #8, Backup Server 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Backup Software Installed specification, there is 

request “Advanced Disk Based Backup Option – disk 

staging backup, first backup to disk than backup to 

tape (D2D2T system)”. 

What is exact disk space that will be used for staging 

procedure? 

This requirement is not specified in the technical 

specification since it is irrelevant from user perspective. 

24. Item #8, Backup Server 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Backup Software Installed specification, there is 

request “Online Database Agents - Protect and 

recover mission-critical database driven applications 

-Enhanced Agent for Databases offered – license for 

1 database server”. 

Which database (vendor, edition and version) does 

represent critical database? 

What is hardware where this database will be 

installed? 

- Database offered under Item No 15 Documents and 

records management system and Company intranet does 

represent critical database.  

- It is up to company that will be contracted how it will 

implement particular solution (e.g. it could be installed 

on Item No 9 Virtualization servers). 

 

25. Item #8, Backup Server 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Backup Software Installed specification, there is 

request “Storage Options—Expand to larger media 

storage devices or share storage resources over a 

SAN - Library Expansion Option – support for dual 

FC tape library offered”. 

What does mean “dual FC tape library offered”? 

Is this feature considered number of tape devices 

within offered tape library? 

Could you more precisely define request “expand to 

larger media”; how large this expansion must be 

supported; should it be only supported or 

licensed/offered? 

 

- A given term means "dual fibre channel tape library" 

or a tape library with dual fibre channel interface. 

- Please note that according to the Technical 

Specification the tenderers can offer one the following 

storage options: 

“Expand to larger media storage devices or share 

storage resources over a SAN” In case “expand to larger 

media storage devices” option is offered, it is irrelevant 

how large this expansion would be. 

 

26. Item #8, Backup Server 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation according to original manufacturer 

recommendations of all licenses, configuration and 

testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

27. Item #9, Virtualization Servers 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Enclosure for Blade Servers specification stands that 

enclosure does not have “single point of failure”. 

Does this request mean that enclosure itself must not 

have SPOF or enclosure backplane must not have 

SPOF? 

Both solutions would be considered acceptable. 

 

28. Item #9, Virtualization Servers 

4/9 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

RAID Controller specification, there is request 

“RAID 0, 1, 0+1, 5 support”. 

Request does not imply RAID 5 support for only 2 

discs. RAID 5 is only one of possible configurations 

concerning scalability. 
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It is requested RAID 5 support with only 2 hard discs. 

Could you clarify this request? 

29. Item #9, Virtualization Servers 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Operating System specification stands VMware VI3 

Enterprise Edition 2 Processor licence (integration 

with unified utility for server management needed) or 

equivalent and Microsoft Windows Server 2008 

DataCenter edition (1 per processor) or equivalent. 

Could you explain us do you need both operating 

system even VMware VI3 Enterprise Edition 2 

Processor licence or Microsoft Windows Server 2008 

DataCenter edition? Is it our options or your 

demand? 

Both Operating Systems are requested, as stated in the 

Technical Specification. 

30. Item #9, Virtualization Servers 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation according to original manufacturer 

recommendations of all licenses and features, 

configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in 

that procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

31./32. Item #10, Internet Firewall & Proxy system, 

High Availability Configuration 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Internet Firewall & Proxy system, High Availability 

configuration (Quantity 1) our questions are: 

Q31 

Does Active directory existing in current network 

infrastructure of Croatian Agency for 

Protection of Personal Data? 

Q32 

If Active director exist in current network 

infrastructure, can we use it for implementation 

purpose? 

Active directory does not exist in current network 

infrastructure of Croatian Agency for Protection of 

Personal Data. 

33./34. Item #10, Internet Firewall & Proxy system, 

High Availability Configuration 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

High Availability implementation – 2 servers or 

appliances in active-active mode our questions are: 

Q33 

Do two quoted servers (HW) for Firewall exist or we 

must offer two brand new servers (HW)? 

Q34 

If necessary to offer physical servers (HW), please 

provide us server (HW) specification. 

There is no need for the tenderer to offer two brand new 

servers. 

35. Item #10, Internet Firewall & Proxy system, High 

Availability Configuration 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation of software, configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in 

that procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 
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36./37./38./39./40. Item #11, Email system, High 

Availability Configuration 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Email system, High Availability configuration 

(Quantity 1) 

Q36 

Does Active directory existing in current network 

infrastructure of Croatian Agency for 

Protection of Personal Data? 

Q37 

If Active director exist in current network 

infrastructure, can we use it for implementation 

purpose? 

Q38 

Do two quoted servers (HW) for email system 

mailbox role exist or we must offer two brand new 

servers (HW)? 

Q39 

If necessary to offer physical servers (HW), please 

provide us server (HW) specification. 

Q40 

Are those servers connected to storage area network 

(SAN)? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A36/37 Active directory does not exist in current 

network infrastructure of Croatian Agency for 

Protection of Personal Data.  

 

 

 

 

 

A38/39 There is no need for the tenderer to offer two 

brand new servers. 

 

 

 

 

 

A40 All servers from Technical Specification will be 

connected to storage area network. 

41. Item #11, Email system, High Availability 

Configuration 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation of software on all client computers, 

configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

42./43./44./45./46./47. Item #12, Suites: 

Management, Antivirus, Mail Archiving and 

Software Asset Management 

Q42 

Does HW equipment for item number 12 exist or we 

must offer brand new servers HW? 

 

 

 

 

Q43 

Do you plan to use virtual or physical server for this 

item of technical specifications and technical offer? 

Q44 

If necessary to offer physical servers (HW), please 

provide us server (HW) specification? 

 

 

 

Q45 

How many virtual or physical server you plan to use 

for this item of technical specifications and technical 

offer? 

6/9 

 

 

 

 

A42 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. Depending on the 

chosen solution for the implementation, HW equipment 

for Item No 12 is specified under Item No 9 

Virtualization servers or under Item No 13 Cluster 

servers. 

 

A43 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. Both solutions would 

be considered acceptable. 

A44 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. If the Contractor 

plans to use physical servers for this Item it should use 

HW equipment specified under Item No 9 Virtualization 

servers or under Item No 13 Cluster servers. 

 

A45 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. 
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Q46 

Does Active directory existing in current network 

infrastructure of Croatian Agency for Protection of 

Personal Data? 

Q47 

If Active director exist in current network 

infrastructure, can we use it for implementation 

purpose? 

 

A46/47 Active directory does not exist in current 

network infrastructure of Croatian Agency for 

Protection of Personal Data. 

 

 

48. Item #12, Suites: Management, Antivirus, Mail 

Archiving and Software Asset Management 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation according to original manufacturer 

recommendations of all licenses, configuration and 

testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

49. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

What must be Included specification stands that the 

mentioned system with all necessary hardware and 

software licenses for 30 users must be included. 

Could you clarify what is about hardware in this 

specification; is it mentioned hardware part of the 

rest of offer i.e. defined in other items or something 

else? 

The requirements for hardware are defined under Item 

No 9 Virtualization servers and under Item No 13 

Cluster servers. 

50. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

Which server is dedicated for DRM and Intranet 

System? 

Regarding technical specifications it should be an 

active-active configuration. 

It is up to company that will be contracted how it will 

implement particular solution. 

 

51. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Administration and Job Structuring specification 

stands that the whole solution must be designed 

highly available where all components of system 

must be doubled with active-active configuration. 

In the After Sales table for this item stands that is 

required 6H SLA for servers. 

What level of SLA should be offered to comply High 

Availability request for the whole solution? 

In the After Sales table for this item stands that is 

required only 6h SLA (Service Level Agreement) for 

servers. Level of SLA to comply High Availability is 

not requested. 

 

52. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Functional Component – Joint Portal specification 

stands that joint portal is both a public and a joint 

portal for all the employees of “Agency”. 

Shall the Joint Portal face only intranet network, i.e. 

not be available to public users (other than Agency 

employees)? 

Joint Portal should not be available to public users 

(other than Agency employees). “Public” means access 

of Agency employees to Joint Portal from outside. 

53. Item #15, Document and Record Management Request “future actions“ means that the system should 
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System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Functional Component – Database Software 

specification stands that by retrieving data from data 

repository, a process can determine what actions 

other users have taken, are taking, or will take, and 

adjust accordingly. 

This request implies that system should predict some 

future user actions. 

Could you define what future actions should the 

system predict? 

Could you clarify this request in more details? 

know what actions are not completed yet (e.g. the 

document should be archived or the document should be 

signed). 

 

54. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Functional Component – Database Software 

specification there is request “High availability 

implemented (2 instances of RDBMS)”. 

This request implies that cluster configuration should 

be issued. 

Are the cluster servers in Item 13 dedicated for 

mentioned instances of RDBMS? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The cluster configuration is only one of the possible 

solutions how high availability can be implemented. 

No. 

55. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Functional Component – Business Rule Engine for 

Hierarchical Approval and Approval Delegation 

specification, there is request “Integration with MS 

Exchange / Outlook, Active Directory, ERP, HR 

System”. 

Which ERP and/or HR systems the offered system 

should be integrated with? 

Is there any on-site ERP and/or HR system that is 

already in production? 

Integration with ERP, HR System means possibility of 

integration with leading vendors of such systems.  

There is no on-site ERP and/or HR system that is 

already in production. 

 

 

56. Item #15, Document and Record Management 

System and Company Intranet 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Functional Component – Administration 

specification stands that the Intranet system must be 

supported by administrators of 2 levels which are: the 

head administrator and the public content 

administrator. 

Could you define types of content mentioned for the 

public content administrator? 

What is “public” referred to; who will, in what way 

and under what conditions access mentioned data? 

All administrators must be able to maintain the 

applications through the web interface of the Intranet 

application. The web interface for administration must 

be available through one or more links on the joint 

portal of the web application. Public refers to the public 

content. 

 

The tasks performed by the head administrator are: 

- editing of the joint portal interface 

- editing of the global structure and the organization 

of the document management system 

(categorization and organization of content, 

document types, meta data) 

- editing of the global structure of the Discussion 

Forum 

- editing of the Assignment Management System 

- answering user questions within the framework of 

IT support 

The tasks performed by the public content administrator 

are: 

- administration of Discussion Forum pages 

- administration of News pages 
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- administration of Bulletin Board pages 

- administration of Form and Model pages 

- administration of Business Procedure pages 

- administration of Departments pages 

Please, notice that both administrators are employees of 

the Agency. 

 

 

57. Item #16, Document scanner 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation, configuration and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

58. Item #17, Internet Portal 

Which server is dedicated for Internet Portal? 

It is up to company that will be contracted how it will 

implement particular solution. 

59. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Working with Pages specification, there is request 

“Redirecting of Pages”. 

What does “redirecting mean? 

Could you clarify this request in more details? 

It means that after satisfying the desired conditions page 

will redirect to specified link.  

 

60. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Working with Pages specification, there is request 

“Advanced User Rights”. 

What are advanced user rights? 

Is there required list of minimum of advanced user 

rights? 

Could you clarify this request in more details? 

“Advanced User Rights” is extension of standard user 

rights with additional features/rights. There is no 

required list of minimum of advanced user rights. 

 

61. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Working with Pools specification, there is request 

“Inheriting Pools in Sitemaps”. 

What is inheritance of pools in sitemap? 

It means that a poll property can be inherited by other 

polls in sitemap. 

62. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Working with Pools specification, there is request 

“Creating and Inserting Article on Homepage, Page 

or Column of News”. 

Why is this request listed in this part of technical 

specifications? 

This specification is not found under Item #17 

"Working with Polls" but under Item #17 "Working 

with Article" and it is the functional requirement.  

 

63. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Document Gallery specification, there is request 

“Deleting Control”. 

Could you explain in more details the term “deleting 

control”? 

“Deleting Control” means that the document galleries 

must support deleting of content and/or galleries 

depending on user rights. 

64. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Page Templates specification, there is request “For 

All Types of Content”. 

Could you define “all types of content”? 

This specification is not found under Item #17 "Page 

Templates" but under Item #17 " WYSIWYG (What 

You See is What You Get) editor " and it means that 

WYSIWYG (What You See is What You Get) editor 

must be fully capable to work with all types of content 

that can appear as the content of Internet Portal. 
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65. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Page Templates specification, there is request “Full 

Control of Content Editing”. 

What exactly does mean “full control of content 

editing”? 

This specification is not found under Item #17 "Page 

Templates" but under Item #17 " WYSIWYG (What 

You See is What You Get) editor " and it means that 

WYSIWYG (What You See is What You Get) editor 

must be fully capable to edit every part of content of 

supported file types. 

66. Item #17, Internet Portal 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Page Templates specification, there is request “Easy 

Managing Tables”. 

What exactly does mean “easy”? 

Which parameters do describe easiness for this 

specification? 

This specification is not found under Item #17 "Page 

Templates" but under Item #17 " WYSIWYG (What 

You See is What You Get) editor " and it means that 

administrator, after training provided by the Contractor 

under this contract can be able to manage the tables 

without any difficulties. 

67. Item #18, Notebooks with Docking Stations and 

Monitors 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation, configuration for user and testing”. 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure and user configuration details? 

Standard testing procedures (as recommended by the 

original manufacturer) specific for offered Item should 

be provided. 

68./69./70./71./72. Item #22, CD/DVD Printer 

In the Technical Specifications for this item under 

Installation specification, there is request 

“Installation of software on dedicated client 

computers, configuration and testing, installation 

media included”. 

Q68 

Could you define complete testing procedure with 

detailed parameters that will be tested in that 

procedure? 

And at the end some general questions 

Q69 

What servers and services from Item numbers in 

yours technical specifications and technical offer do 

you mean to install on virtualization server? 

Q70 

What is main purpose of virtualization server in this 

configuration? 

Q71 

What is main purpose of Cluster servers – High 

Availability solution in this configuration? 

Q72 

How many virtual servers do you plan? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A68 Standard testing procedures (as recommended by 

the original manufacturer) specific for offered Item 

should be provided. 

 

 

A69 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. 

 

 

A70 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. 

 

A71 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. 

 

A72 It is up to company that will be contracted how it 

will implement particular solution. 
 


